INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Jubilant Generics Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Jubilant Generics Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information .

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.
We are also responsible to conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause an entity to cease to continue as a going concern.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2018, its profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.
c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act.
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2018 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B”.
g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us.

i.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
financial statements; - Refer Note 30 to the Ind AS financial statements.

ii.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
iv.

The disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been
made since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2018. However, amounts as
appearing in the audited Ind AS financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2017 have
been disclosed.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

Place: Noida
Date: 8 May 2018

Pravin Tulsyan
Partner
Membership No.: 108044

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on Ind AS financial statements of Jubilant
Generics Limited
The Annexure A referred to in our report to the members of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018.
We report that:
(i)

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of its fixed assets.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a regular programme of
physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a
period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the
year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. As informed to us, the discrepancies noticed on such
verification were not material and have been properly adjusted in the books of account.
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
books of account, the title deeds of immovable property are held in the name of the Company.

(ii)

The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been physically verified by
the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. For
stocks lying with third parties at the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained. As informed to
us, the discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records were not
material and have been properly adjusted in the books of account.

(iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted
unsecured loans to ultimate holding company covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Act. In respect of the aforesaid loans:
(a) the terms and conditions of the grant of short-term loan granted during the year are not prejudicial to
the Company’s interest;
(b) the party was regular in payment of interest and principal as stipulated; and
(c) there is no amount overdue for more than ninety days.
According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Act. As informed to us, there are no limited liability partnerships covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Act.
(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records,
the Company has not provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and
Section 186 of the Act. Further, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act
in respect of loan granted and investments made to the parties covered under Section 186.
(v)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits as
mentioned in the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013, and the rules framed there under. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
specified by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, in

respect of its products and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have
been made and maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the records with a
view to determine whether these are accurate or complete.
(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues have
generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no amounts payable in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other material statutory dues
were in arrears as at 31 March 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax,
service tax, duty of excise, duty of customs and value added tax which have not been deposited with
the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute, except as mentioned below:
Name of
the Statute

Nature of
the Dues

Central
Excise Act,
1944

Excise
Duty

Amount
involved*
(Rs. in million)
3.64
0.05
14.3

Finance
Act, 1994

Service
Tax

Customs
Act, 1962

Customs
Duty

0.01
253.12
1.85
0.08

Amount
Financial year
Forum where
paid under
to which the dispute is pending
protest
amount relates
(Rs. in million)
2010-13
High court
2011-12
Deputy
Commissioner
2012-2017
Joint
Commissioner
2013-14
Superintendent
1.52
2006-14
High Court
2014-15
Commissioner
(Appeals)
0.08
2000-02
Deputy
Commissioner

* amount as per demand orders including interest and penalty, wherever indicated in the order.
(viii) In our opinion and according the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of dues to banks and financial institutions. The Company did not have any loans or
borrowings from government and had not issued any debentures during the year.
(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, no term loan was taken by the Company and
has not raised any moneys by way or initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments). Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(x)

Based on our examination of the books of account and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid/provided for any
managerial remuneration during the year as mentioned under section 197 read with schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.
(xiii) Based on our examination of the books of account and according to the information and explanations
given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.
(xiv) Based on our examination of the books of account and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not
applicable.
(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any noncash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the
Order is not applicable.
(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

Place: Noida
Date: 8 May 2018

Pravin Tulsyan
Partner
Membership No.: 108044

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on Ind AS financial statements of Jubilant
Generics Limited
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Jubilant Generics
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial statements and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.
For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

Place: Noida
Date: 8 May 2018

Pravin Tulsyan
Partner
Membership No.: 108044

Jubilant Generics Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018
As at
31 March 2018

(INR in million)
As at
31 March 2017

3
3
4
4
4

6,388.98
596.16
1,371.36
1,233.42
3,172.60

6,302.57
207.10
1,371.36
1,133.14
3,494.06

5(a)
5(b)
6

4,055.00
3,289.54
812.10
92.74
60.83
21,072.73

4,055.00
3,286.30
784.14
6.15
33.78
20,673.60

8

2,470.21

2,660.31

5(c)
5(d)
5(e)
5(b)
5(f)
9

1,904.46
67.30
3.60
0.54
95.84
1,012.42
5,554.37
26,627.10

2,225.24
70.47
3.60
0.03
64.71
654.71
5,679.07
26,352.67

10(a)
10(b)

25.80
22,605.49
22,631.29

25.80
22,263.05
22,288.85

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i.
Borrowings
Provisions
Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

11(a)
13

8.87
235.09
77.62
321.58

7.96
204.93
96.95
309.84

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i.
Borrowings
ii.
Trade payables
iii.
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities (net)

11(b)
11(d)
11(e)
12
13

863.12
1,725.25
563.66
485.14
37.06
-

816.26
1,859.29
579.64
220.42
29.45
248.92

3,674.23

3,753.98

3,995.81
26,627.10

4,063.82
26,352.67

Notes
AS S ETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Intangible assets under development
Financial assets
i.
Investments
ii.
Loans
Deferred tax assets (net)
Income tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

7

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
i.
Trade receivables
ii.
Cash and cash equivalents
iii. Other bank balances
iv. Loans
v.
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share cap ital
Other equity
Total equity

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 101248W/W-100022

Pravin Tulsyan
Partner
M embership No: 108044

Place : Noida
Date : 08 M ay 2018

R. S ankaraiah
Director
DIN: 00025022

Amit Chaurasia
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Jubilant Generics Limited

Pramod Yadav
Director
DIN: 05264757

Jubilant Generics Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2018
9,627.01
317.08
9,944.09

(INR in million)
For the year ended
31 March 2017
10,593.49
132.60
10,726.09

16

3,669.79
20.09

3,990.53
108.59

17

115.54

(479.09)

32.90
1,571.42
7.07
1,651.27
2,442.01
9,510.09
434.00

131.26
1,418.13
427.35
796.86
2,132.26
8,525.89
2,200.20

114.65
(114.65)
88.39
88.39
345.61

492.07
(539.81)
(238.75)
(286.49)
2,486.69

(4.87)

(16.11)

1.70

5.58

(3.17)
342.44

(10.53)
2,476.16

133.98
133.98

1,714.15
1,276.44

Notes
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
Purchases of stock-in-trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-intrade and work-in-progress
Excise duty on sales
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Total expenses
Profit before tax
Tax expense/(benefits)
- Current tax
- MAT credit entitlement
- Deferred tax charge/(credit)
Total tax expense/(benefits)
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit obligations
Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclasssified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year
Earning per equity share of INR 10 each
Basic (INR)
Diluted (INR)

14
15

18
19
20
21

22

22

37

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Jubilant Generics Limited

ICAI Firm Registration Number : 101248W/W-100022

Pravin Tulsyan
Partner
Membership No: 108044

Place : Noida
Date : 08 M ay 2018

R. Sankaraiah
Director
DIN: 00025022

Amit Chaurasia
Company Secretary

Pramod Yadav
Director
DIN: 05264757

Jubilant Generics Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2018
a) Equity share capital
(INR in million)
13.08
12.72
25.80
25.80

Balance as at 1 April 2016
Issue of equity shares
Balance as at 31 March 2017
Issue of equity shares
Balance as at 31 March 2018
(b) Other Equity (1)

(INR in million)
Equity component of
compound financial
instruments#

As at 1 April 2016
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year
Issue of equity share on conversion of
compulsory convertible debenture
As at 31 March 2017
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year
As at 31 March 2018

Reserves and surplus

Place : Noida
Date : 08 May 2018

Total other
equity

Capital
reserve

Securities
premium
reserve

Retained
earnings

1,970.39
-

2.81
-

7,096.92
-

(150.49)
2,486.69
(10.53)
2,476.16

6,949.24
2,486.69
(10.53)
2,476.16

8,919.63
2,486.69
(10.53)
2,476.16

(1,970.39)

4,362.53

8,475.12

-

12,837.65

10,867.26

-

4,365.34
4,365.34

15,572.04
15,572.04

2,325.67
345.61
(3.17)
342.44
2,668.11

22,263.05
345.61
(3.17)
342.44
22,605.49

22,263.05
345.61
(3.17)
342.44
22,605.49

# It represents the equity component of compound financial instruments computed in accordance with Ind AS 109
(1) Refer note 10(b) for nature and purpose of other equity
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 101248W/W-100022

Pravin Tulsyan
Partner
Membership No: 108044

Total reserves and
surplus and other
comprehensive
income

R. Sankaraiah
Director
DIN: 00025022

Amit Chaurasia
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Jubilant Generics Limited

Pramod Yadav
Director
DIN: 05264757

Jubilant Generics Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2018
F o r t h e ye a r e n de d
3 1 M a rc h 2 0 18

( IN R in m illio n )
F o r t he ye a r e n d e d
3 1 M a rc h 2 0 17

434.00

2,200.20

A . C a s h f lo ws fro m o p e ra tin g a c t iv it ie s
P ro fit be f o re t a x
Adjus tm e nts :
De prec iatio n a nd a m o rtis atio n e xpe ns e
Lo s s o n s a le /dis po s a l/dis c a rd o f pro pe rty, pla nt a nd e quipm e nt (ne t)
F ina nc e c o s ts
Unre alis ed fo re ign exc ha nge (ga in)/lo s s
Allo wa nce fo r e xpe c te d c re dit lo s s /(lia bilitie s no lo nger re quire d writte n ba c k)
Divide nd o n no n-trade inves tm e nts
Inte res t inc o m e
O p e ra t in g c a s h f lo ws b e f o re wo rk in g c a p it a l c h a n g e s

1,651.27
11.73
7.07
(51.04)
23.48
(0.14)
(279.09)
1,7 9 7 .2 8

796.86
(1.87)
427.35
27.38
(29.93)
(1.47)
(127.34)
3 ,2 9 1.18

(Inc rea s e)/ de c re a s e in trade re c eiva ble s , lo a ns , o the r fina nc ia l a s s ets and o the r a s s e ts
De c rea s e /(inc re a s e) in inve nto ries
Inc re as e in tra de pa ya ble s , o the r fina nc ia l lia bilitie s , o the r lia bilitie s a nd pro vis io ns
C a s h g e n e ra t e d f ro m o pe ra t io n s
Inc o me ta x pa id (ne t o f re funds )
N e t c a s h g e n e ra t e d f ro m o p e ra t in g a c t iv it ie s

(36.20)
190.10
242.95
2 ,19 4 .13
(450.16)
1,7 4 3 .9 7

177.31
(556.25)
462.55
3 , 3 7 4 .7 9
(290.91)
3 , 0 8 3 .8 8

B . C a s h f lo ws f ro m inv e s t in g a c tiv it ie s
P urc ha s e o f pro pe rty, pla nt a nd e quipm e nt, o the r inta ngible a s s e ts (inc luding c a pita l wo rk-in-pro gre s s
a nd inta ngible a s s e ts under deve lo pm e nt)
S a le o f pro pe rty pla nt and e quipme nt
Inte r co rpo ra te lo a n to re late d pa rty
Divide nd re ce ive d
Inte res t re c eive d
N e t c a s h u s e d in inv e s t in g a c t iv it ie s

(1,963.47)
3.07
0.14
279.08
( 1,6 8 1.18 )

(1,771.41)
2.53
(3,250.00)
1.47
92.67
( 4 , 9 2 4 .7 4 )

(23.14)
70.00
(112.82)
( 6 5 .9 6 )

(4,083.49)
9,330.70
(1,681.48)
(1,688.86)
1, 8 7 6 .8 7

C . C a s h f lo ws f ro m f in a n c in g a c tiv it ie s #
R e paym ents o f lo ng term bo rro wings
Is s ue o f c o m po und fina ncia l ins trum e nt
R e paym ent o f s ho rt-term bo rro wings (ne t)
Inte r co rpo ra te lo a n fro m ultim a te ho lding c o m pa ny (ne t)
F ina nc e c o s ts pa id *
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Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Corporate Information
Jubilant Generics Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated
on 25 November 2013 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company is incorporated to engage
in the manufacture and supply of Generics (including Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (APIs) and Solid
Dosage Formulations). The registered office of the Company is situated at Plot No 1A, Sector 16A,
Institutional Area, Noida, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Uttar Pradesh 201301.
2. Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for
adoption of the following amendment in the Ind AS 7 effective from the current year. The said amendment
requires the Company to provide disclosures which will enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and
non-cash changes. The adoption of the above amendment to the Standard does not have any significant impact
on the financial position or performance of the Company.
The Company has not early adopted any Standards or amendments that has been issued but is not yet effective.
(a) Basis of preparation
(i) Statement of compliance
These Ind AS Financial Statements (“financial statements”) have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified
under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act. All the
amounts included in the financial statements are reported in millions of Indian Rupees and are rounded to the
nearest million, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.
The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 8, 2018.
(ii) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis, unless
otherwise stated.
(iii) Effective 1 April 2015, the Company had transitioned to Ind AS while the financial statements were
being prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (previous GAAP) till 31
March 2016 and the transition was carried out in accordance of Ind AS 101 "First time adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards". While carrying out transition the Company had elected to certain exemption which are
listed as below:
(a) The Company had opted to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets as recognised in the financial statements prepared under Previous GAAP and use the same as
deemed cost in the financial statement as at the transition date.
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b) The Company elected to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively to business combinations occurring after its
transition date. Business combinations occurring prior to the transition date have not been restated.
c) The Company has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date
of transition to Ind AS.
(b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when:





It is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.
A liability is current when:
 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities; respectively.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of
current-non-current classification of assets and liabilities.
(c) Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible assets
(i) Property, plant and equipment
Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, which
includes capitalized finance costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. The cost of an item
of a PPE comprises its purchase price including import duty, and other non-refundable taxes or levies and
any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition of its intended use. Any trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Expenditure incurred on startup and commissioning of the project and/or substantial expansion, including
the expenditure incurred on trial runs (net of trial run receipts, if any) up to the date of commencement of
commercial production are capitalised. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
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carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.
Advances paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet
date, are shown under other non-current assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use before the
year end, are shown as capital work-in- progress.
(ii) Intangible assets


Goodwill

Goodwill arising on business combinations is disclosed in the Balance sheet and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an asset. With regard to other internally generated
intangible assets:
- Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.
- Development expenditure including regulatory cost and legal expenses leading to product registration/
market authorisation relating to the new and/or improved product and/or process development
capitalised only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has
sufficient resources to complete development and to use the asset. The expenditure capitalised includes
the cost of materials, direct labour, overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for
its intended use, and directly attributable finance costs (in the same manner as in the case of tangible
fixed assets). Other development expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as
incurred.
- Intangible assets that are acquired (including implementation of software system) are measured initially
at cost.
- After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benefits from the specific asset to which it relates.
(iii) Depreciation and amortization methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation is provided on straight line basis on the original cost/ acquisition cost of assets or other
amounts substituted for cost of fixed assets as per the useful life specified in Part 'C' of Schedule II of the
Act, read with notification dated 29 August 2014 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, except for the
following classes of property, plant and equipment which are depreciated based on the internal technical
assessment of the management as under:
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Category of assets
Motor vehicles (Vehicle -Owned)
Motor vehicles under finance lease
(Vehicle - Leased)
Computer servers and networks
(included in office equipment)
Dies and punches for manufacture of
dosage formulations (included in
property, plant and equipment)
Change parts for manufacture of
dosage formulations (included in
property, plant and equipment)
Employee perquisite related assets
(except end user computers)
(included in office equipment)

Management estimate
of useful life
5 years
Tenure of lease or 5
years whichever is
shorter
5 years

Useful life as per
Schedule II
8 years
8 years
6 years

1-2 years

15 years

5 years

15 years

5 years, being the
period of perquisite
scheme

10 years

Leasehold improvement (included in furniture & fixtures) are depreciated over their estimated useful life,
or the remaining period of lease from the date of capitalisation, whichever is shorter.
The estimated useful lives of intangibles are follows:
Internally generated product registration
Rights
Software

5 years
5 years
5 years

Depreciation and amortization on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets added/ disposed off
during the year has been provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date/month of addition/disposal.
Depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted if appropriate.
(iv) Derecognition
A property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is derecognised on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use and disposal. Losses arising from retirement and gains or
losses arising from disposal of a tangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
(d) Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily
through sale rather than through continuing use. Such assets, are generally measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. Losses on initial classification as held for sale and
subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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Once classified as held for sale, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are no longer
depreciated or amortised.
(e) Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if event or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired
The Company’s non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows (i.e. corporate assets) are
grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.
The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value
in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU. Goodwill
is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the busies
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level at
which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.
An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the
Company reviews at reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized.
(f) Financial instrument
A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:





Debt instruments at amortised cost
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and contractual terms of the asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or the amortised cost of the financial liability. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Debt instrument at FVOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if the objective of the business model is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and the asset’s contractual cash flows
represent SPPI.
Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.
Debt instrument at FVPL
FVPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVPL. In addition, at initial recognition,
the Company may irrevocably elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost
or FVOCI criteria, as at FVPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).
Debt instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Equity investments
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.
If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI
to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss to retained earnings.
Equity instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down
immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Impairment of financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with
contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month
ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those
are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECL (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance
at the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:



The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘passthrough’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVPL. A financial liability is classified as
at FVPL if it is classified as held‑for‑trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Derivative financial instruments
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign-exchange forward contracts to hedge its
foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is
negative.
Compound financial instruments
Compound financial instruments issued by the company comprise convertible debenture denominated in
Indian Rupee that can be converted to ordinary shares at the option of the holder and issuer, when the
number of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary with changes in fair value.
The liability component of compound financial instruments is initially recognised at the fair value of a
similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is initially recognised
at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of
the liability component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of compound financial instruments is measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. The equity component of a compound financial instrument is not
remeasured.
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Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in Statement of profit and loss. On conversion at maturity
and early conversion, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gains or losses are recognised.
Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
(g) Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value except scrap, which is valued at net estimated
realisable value.
The Company uses weighted average method to determine cost for all categories of inventories except for
goods in transit which is valued at specifically identified purchase cost. Cost includes all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition
inclusive of non-refundable (adjustable) taxes wherever applicable. The cost of work in progress and
manufactured finished goods include an appropriate share of variable and fixed production overheads. Fixed
production overheads are included based on normal capacity of production facilities.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net realisable value of work-in-progress is
determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products. Raw materials and other supplies
held for use in the production of finished products are not written down below cost, except in cases where
material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net
realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.
(h) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash at banks and on hand (including imprest) and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
(i) Provisions
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

(j) Revenue recognition
Revenue from sale of products is recognised when the property in the goods, or all significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the products have been transferred to the buyer, and no significant uncertainty exists
regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods as well as regarding its
collection. Revenues include excise duty till 30 June 2017 and are shown net of goods and service tax (GST)
(w.e.f 1 July 2017), sales tax & value added tax (effective till 30 June 2017) and applicable discounts and
allowances if any.
Revenue includes only those sales for which the Company has acted as a principal in the transaction, takes title
to the products, and has the risks and rewards of ownership, including the risk of loss for collection, delivery
and returns. Any sales for which the Company has acted as an agent or broker without assuming the risks and
rewards of ownership have been reported on a net basis.
Revenue from fixed-price contract is recorded on a proportionate completion method.
Revenue includes amounts derived from product out-licensing agreements. These arrangements typically
consist of an initial up-front payment on inception of the license and subsequent payments dependent on
achieving certain milestones in accordance with the terms prescribed in the agreement.
Upfront non-refundable receipts are recorded as deferred revenue. Revenue under out-licensing arrangements
are recognised as revenues as obligations are fulfilled under contractual arrangement and/or as milestones are
achieved as the case may be.
Refundable fees are deferred and recognised as revenue in the period in which all contractual obligations are
met and the contingency is resolved.
Export incentive entitlements are recognised as income when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the
scheme is established in respect of the exports made, and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the
ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds. These are presented as operating income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
(k) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits: All employee benefits falling due within twelve months of the end of the
period in which the employees render the related services are classified as short-term employee benefits,
which include benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated absences, performance incentives,
etc. and are recognised as expenses in the period in which the employee renders the related service and
measured accordingly.
(ii) Post-employment benefits: Post employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and
defined contribution plans as under:
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a) Gratuity
The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible
employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while
in employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employee's
salary and the tenure of employment. The liability in respect of Gratuity is recognised in the books of
accounts based on actuarial valuation by an independent actuary. The gratuity liability for certain
employees of the Company is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India.
b) Provident fund
(i) The Company makes contribution to the recognised provident fund - "VAM EMPLOYEES
PROVIDENT FUND TRUST" (a multiemployer trust) for most of its employees in India, which is a
defined benefit plan to the extent that the Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if
any, between the return from the investments of the trust and the notified interest rate. The Company's
obligation in this regard is determined by an independent actuary and provided for if the circumstances
indicate that the Trust may not be able to generate adequate returns to cover the interest rates notified
by the Government.
For other employees in India, provident fund is deposited with Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner. This is treated as defined contribution plan.
(ii) Company's contribution to the provident fund is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
(iii) Other long-term employee benefits:
Compensated absences
As per the Company's policy, eligible leaves can be accumulated by the employees and carried forward to
future periods to either be utilised during the service, or encashed. Encashment can be made during service,
on early retirement, on withdrawal of scheme, at resignation and upon death of the employee. Accumulated
compensated absences are treated as other long-term employee benefits.
(iv) Termination benefits:
Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when, as a result of a past event, the Company has a
present obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation.
Actuarial valuation
The liability in respect of all defined benefit plans and other long term benefits is accrued in the books of
account on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, which recognizes each year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at
the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value
of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the
Balance Sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of related obligations.
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Remeasurment gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they
arise. Remeasurment gains and losses in respect of all defined benefit plans arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly
in other comprehensive income. They are included in other equity in the Statement of Changes in Equity and
in the Balance Sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost. Gains or losses
on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment or
settlement occurs. Any differential between the plan assets (for a funded defined benefit plan) and the
defined benefit obligation as per actuarial valuation is recognised as a liability if it is a deficit or as an asset if
it is a surplus (to the extent of the lower of present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plan or reduction in future contribution to the plan).
Past service cost is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over
the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits are already vested
immediately following the introduction of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan, the past service cost is
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Past service cost may be either positive (where
benefits are introduced or improved) or negative (where existing benefits are reduced)
(v) Share-based payments:
Certain employees of the Company are in receipt of stock options from Jubilant Life Sciences Limited. The
grant date fair value of options granted (net of estimated forfeiture) to employees of the Company is
recognized as an employee expense. The expense is recorded for each separately vesting portion of the award
as if the award was, in substance, multiple awards. The increase in equity recognized in connection with
share based payment transaction is presented as a separate component in equity under “capital reserve”. The
amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of stock options that vest. For the
option awards, grant date fair value is determined under the option-pricing model (Black- Scholes Merton).
Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures materially differ from those estimates.
(l)

Finance costs
Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Finance cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the finance
costs. Finance costs that are directly attributable to the construction or production or development of a
qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. All other finance costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the finance costs eligible for capitalization. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method Ancillary costs incurred in
connection with the arrangement of borrowings are amortised over the period of such borrowings.
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(m)

Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.
 Current tax:
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable
or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering
uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.
 Deferred tax:
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:
–
–
–

temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time
of the transaction;
temporary differences related to freehold land and investments in subsidiaries, to the extent that the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and
taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets (DTA) include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in
India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future
income tax liability.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can
be used. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.
(n) Leases
At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. If it is a lease
arrangement, it is classified as either a finance lease or an operating lease, based on the substance of the lease
arrangement.
Finance leases
Assets leased by the Company in its capacity as lessee where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership vest in the Company are classified as finance leases. A finance lease is recognized as an asset and a
liability at the commencement of the lease, at the lower of the fair value of the asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the
finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability
Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company
as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.
(o) Foreign currency translation
(i)

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company in the Indian rupee. These financial statements are presented
in Indian rupees.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
Balance Sheet date exchange rates are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement
of profit and loss, within finance costs, All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
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at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example translation differences on nonmonetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive
income (OCI).
(p) Segment reporting
Board of Directors of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision maker (CODM) as
defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. Operating Segments have been defined and presented based on
the regular review by the CODM to assess the performance of segment and to make decision about allocation
of resources. Accordingly, the company has determined pharmaceutical as the only reportable segment.
(q) Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within
other income.
Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income.
(r) Earnings per share
(i)

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
 the profit attributable to owners of the Company
 by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account:
 the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and
 the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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(s) Measurement of fair values
A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy
based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).
The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This
includes a finance team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements,
including Level 3 fair values.
The finance team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information is used to measure fair values, then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third
parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in
the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.
Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing these financial
statements is included in the respective notes.
(t) Critical estimates and judgments
The preparation of Financial Statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In
particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements is included in the following notes.





Assessment of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets – Note 2(c)
Valuation of inventories – Note 2(g)
Recognition of revenue and related accruals – Note 2(j)
Fair value measurement – Note 2(s)
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Estimation of assets and obligations relating to employee benefits – Note 24
Recognition and estimation of tax expense including deferred tax – Note 22
Estimated impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets – Note 2(e) and 2(f)
Recognition and measurement of contingency : Key assumption about the likelihood and magnitude
of an outflow of resources – Note 30
Lease classification – Note 31(b)

(u) Recent accounting pronouncements
Applicable standards issued but not yet effective
Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts with customers
MCA vide its notification dated 28 March 2018, notified Ind AS 115, “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”. Ind AS 115 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Ind AS 115 will supersede the current revenue recognition
standard Ind AS 18 Revenue, Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts when it becomes effective.
The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:
• Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
• Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract
• Step 3: Determine the transaction price
• Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
• Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation
Under Ind AS 115, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.
The new revenue recognition standard is effective from 1 April 2018. The Company has completed its
evaluation of the possible impact of Ind AS 115 and does not expect the impact of the adoption of the new
standard to be material.
Appendix B, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration to Ind AS 21, the effects of
changes in foreign exchange rates
MCA vide its notification dated 28 March 2018, notified Appendix B, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration to Ind AS 21. The amendment clarifies on the accounting of transactions that include
the receipt or payment of advance consideration in a foreign currency. The appendix explains that the date of
the transaction, for the purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of the nonmonetary prepayment asset or deferred income liability. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance,
a date of transaction is established for each payment or receipt. Appendix B is effective from 1 April 2018.
The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this amendment.
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3. Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress
Furniture
and
fixtures

Landfreehold

Building- factory

601.89
601.89

967.79
99.35
1,067.14

111.37
1.39
112.76

4,470.02
864.35
(0.38)
5,333.99

106.16
10.64
(0.84)
115.96

1.74
1.74

9.44
7.22
(1.30)
15.36

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2016

-

38.99

2.33

512.76

22.64

0.52

2.24

15.52

595.00

-

Depreciation charge for the year
Deductions/adjustments
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March
2017
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2017
Net carrying value as at 1 April 2016

-

37.25
-

2.72
-

350.60
-

16.49
(0.20)

0.37
-

3.19
(0.31)

17.43
(0.04)

428.05
(0.55)

-

-

76.24

5.05

863.36

38.93

0.89

5.12

32.91

1,022.50

-

601.89
601.89

990.90
928.80

107.71
109.04

4,470.63
3,957.26

77.03
83.52

0.85
1.22

10.24
7.20

43.32
42.05

6,302.57
5,730.98

207.10
165.61

Description

Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2016
Additions/adjustments (3)
Deductions/adjustments
Gross carrying value as at 31 March 2017

Description

Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2017
Additions/adjustments (3)
Deductions/adjustments
Gross carrying value as at 31 March 2018
Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2017
Depreciation charge for the year
Deductions/adjustments
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March
2018
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2018
Net carrying value as at 1 April 2017

Building- Plant and
Other equipment

Building- Plant and
Other equipment

Furniture
and
fixtures

Vehicles- VehiclesOffice
owned
leased equipment

INR in million
Capital
work-inTotal
progress
(CWIP)

57.57 6,325.98
19.39 1,002.34
(0.73)
(3.25)
76.23 7,325.07

Vehicles- VehiclesOffice
owned
leased equipment

165.61
1,038.97
(997.48)
207.10

INR in million
Capital
work-inTotal
progress
(CWIP)

Landfreehold

Building- factory

601.89
601.89

1,067.14
94.17
1,161.31

112.76
112.76

5,333.99
495.67
(34.21)
5,795.45

115.96
13.28
(2.34)
126.90

1.74
1.74

15.36
7.72
(4.42)
18.66

-

76.24
41.81
-

5.05
3.07
-

863.36
467.13
(23.71)

38.93
15.65
(1.73)

0.89
0.41
-

5.12
3.85
(2.48)

32.91
19.17
(0.77)

1,022.50
551.09
(28.69)

-

-

118.05

8.12

1,306.78

52.85

1.30

6.49

51.31

1,544.90

-

601.89
601.89

1,043.26
990.90

104.64
107.71

4,488.67
4,470.63

74.05
77.03

0.44
0.85

12.17
10.24

63.86
43.32

6,388.98
6,302.57

596.16
207.10

76.23 7,325.07
41.46
652.30
(2.52)
(43.49)
115.17 7,933.88

207.10
1,033.24
(644.18)
596.16
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Notes:
(1) Refer note 31(a) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment.
(2) Refer note 19 for finance costs capitalised.
(3) Includes INR 69.75 million (previous year INR 140.49 million) in respect of research and development assets.
(4) Capital research and development expenditure aggregating to INR 74.14 million (previous year INR 128.48
million) incurred during the year included in additions to property plant & equipment/ capital work-inprogress.
4. Goodwill, other intangible assets and intangible assets under development
INR in million

Description

Internally
generated product
Goodwill
registration/
marke t
authorisation (a)

Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2016
Additions/adjustments (1)
Deductions/adjustments (3)
Gross carrying value as at 31 March 2017

1,371.36
1,371.36

Accumulate d amortisation as at 1 April 2016
Amortisation for the year
Accumulate d amortisation as at 31 March
2017
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2017
Net carrying value as at 1 April 2016

Intangibles
Total
assets under
(a+b+c)
development

Rights
(b)

Software
(c)

1,308.61
338.64
1,647.25

15.81
15.81

5.47
189.48
194.95

1,329.89
528.12
1,858.01

-

365.74

5.20

0.88

371.82

-

345.35

5.18

2.52

353.05

-

-

711.09

10.38

3.40

724.87

-

1,371.36
1,371.36

936.16
942.87

5.43
10.61

191.55
4.59

1,133.14
958.07

3,494.06
2,883.58

2,883.58
1,153.96
(543.48)
3,494.06

INR in million

Description

Internally
generated product
Goodwill
registration/
marke t
authorisation (a)

Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2017
Additions/adjustments (1)
Deductions/adjustments (3)
Gross carrying value as at 31 March 2018

1,371.36
1,371.36

Accumulate d amortisation as at 1 April 2017
Amortisation for the year
Accumulate d amortisation as at 31 March
2018
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2018
Net carrying value as at 1 April 2017

Intangibles
Total
assets under
(a+b+c)
development

Rights
(b)

Software
(c)

1,647.25
498.76
2,146.01

15.81
15.81

194.95
30.16
225.11

1,858.01
528.92
2,386.93

-

711.09

10.38

3.40

724.87

-

380.00

5.18

43.46

428.64

-

-

1,091.09

15.56

46.86

1,153.51

-

1,371.36
1,371.36

1,054.92
936.16

0.25
5.43

178.25
191.55

1,233.42
1,133.14

3,172.60
3,494.06

3,494.06
879.00
(1,200.46)
3,172.60
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Notes:
(1) Represents INR 498.76 million (previous year INR 338.64 million) in respect of research and development
assets.
(2) Capital research and development expenditure aggregating to INR 848.93 million (previous year INR
1,010.39 million) incurred during the year included in additions to Intangible assets/Intangible assets under
development.
(3) The carrying value of internally generated product registration and other intangibles (including intangible
assets under development) has been reviewed and based on prevailing market conditions, technical and
financial assessment, INR 671.54 million (previous year INR 15.36 million) have been charged off and
included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
(4) Refer note 19 for finance costs capitalised.
5(a) Non-current investments

As at
31 March 2018

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017

965.00

965.00

3,090.00

3,090.00

Total non-current investments

4,055.00

4,055.00

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

4,055.00

4,055.00

Investment in equity shares (at cost)
Unquoted investment (fully paid up)
(A) Subsidiary:
Jubilant Pharma NV
[13,900,000 (Previous year 13,900,000) equity shares of face value
Euro 1 per share]
(B) Associate:
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc.
[200 (Previous year 200) equity shares with no par value]

5(b) Loans

Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits
Loan to related parties (refer note 29)
Loan to employees
Total loans

As at
31 March 2018
NonCurrent
current

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017
NonCurrent
current

34.84
- 3,250.00
0.54
4.70
0.54 3,289.54

31.29
- 3,250.00
0.03
5.01
0.03 3,286.30
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5(c) Trade receivables

Unsecured and current
Trade receivables
Receivables from related parties (Refer note 29)
Less: Expected credit loss allowance (Refer note 26)
Total trade receivables

As at
31 March 2018

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017

1,499.64
414.46
(9.64)
1,904.46

1,737.83
492.84
(5.43)
2,225.24

As at
31 March 2018

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017

14.26
0.61

16.72
0.56

52.39
0.04
67.30

53.10
0.09
70.47

As at
31 March 2018

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017

3.60

3.60

3.60

3.60

As at
31 March 2018

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017

72.94
1.77
21.13
95.84

42.50
1.09
21.12
64.71

5(d) Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- in current accounts
Cash on hand
Others
- Funds in transit
- Imprest
Total cash and cash equivalents
5 (e) Other bank balance

Deposits accounts with maturity up to twelve months from the
reporting date- held as margin money
Total other bank balance (1)
(1) These have restricted use
5 (f) Other financial assets

Advances recoverable from related parties (refer note 29)
Unbilled revenue
Interest receivable
Total other financial assets
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6. Deferred tax
Deferred income tax reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of asset
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for income tax purposes. Significant
component of the Company’s net deferred income tax are as follows:
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Deferred tax assets
Provision for
compensated
absences and
gratuity
As at 1 April 2016
(Charged)/credited:
- to statement of profit and loss
- to Other comprehensive income
As at 31 March 2017
(Charged)/credited:
- to statement of profit and loss
- to Other comprehensive income
As at 31 March 2018

INR in million
Total

Expenditure
allowed on actual
payment basis

Tax losses
carried
forward

MAT Credit
Entitlement

Others

-

-

-

-

-

41.96
5.58
47.54

12.01
12.01

1,387.33
1,387.33

539.81
539.81

8.86
8.86

1,989.97
5.58
1,995.55

19.34
1.70
68.58

9.68
21.69

187.97
1,575.30

114.65
654.46

2.09
10.95

333.73
1.70
2,330.98

-

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Deferred tax liabilities:

As at 1 April 2016
Charged/(credited):
- to statement of profit and loss
As at 31 March 2017
Charged/(credited):
- to statement of profit and loss
As at 31 March 2018

Depreciation and Difference in tax
amortisation
value and book
value of R&D
CWIP/ intangibles
and intangibles
under
development
-

Othe rs

-

-

641.87
641.87

545.95
545.95

23.59
23.59

1,211.41
1,211.41

240.85
882.72

76.69
622.64

(10.07)
13.52

307.47
1,518.88

Reflected in the Balance Sheet as follows:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred tax assets, net:

INR in million
Total

As at
31 March 2018
2,330.98
1,518.88
812.10

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017
1,995.55
1,211.41
784.14
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Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (net):

Balance as at the commencement of the year
Credit during the year recognised in statement of
profit and loss (including MAT)
Credit during the year recognised in OCI
Balance as at the end of the year

As at
31 March 2018
784.14

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017
-

26.26
1.70
812.10

778.56
5.58
784.14

Deferred tax has not been recognized on temporary differences in relation to indexation benefit of investment
in subsidiary and freehold land amounting to INR 125.95 million (31 March 2017: INR 93.17 million) and
INR 18.70 million (31 March 2017: INR 13.83 million) respectively, as the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in foreseeable future.
7. Other non-current assets

Capital advances
Total other non-current assets

As at
31 March 2018
60.83
60.83

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017
33.78
33.78

8. Inventories

Raw materials*
Work-in-progress
Finished goods*
Stores and spares*
Packing material*
Others- process chemicals and fuels
Total inventories

As at
31 March 2018
718.95
1,079.83
382.60
211.11
76.08
1.64
2,470.21

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017
798.58
1,285.23
292.74
195.54
87.51
0.71
2,660.31

As at
31 March 2018
40.68
121.75
162.43

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017
33.71
101.69
3.20
10.14
148.74

*Goods in transit, included in above

Raw materials
Finished goods
Stores and spares
Packing material
Total inventories
Total write down of inventories recognised during the year

177.19

83.31
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9. Other current assets

Prepaid expenses
Recoverable from/ balance with government authorities (also refer
note 36)
Advance to employees
Advance for supply of goods and services
Total other current assets

As at
31 March 2018
83.03

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017
60.56

871.50

529.40

8.33
49.56
1,012.42

7.96
56.79
654.71

10. Equity share capital and other equity
10(a) Equity share capital
As at
31 March 2018

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017

30.00
30.00

30.00
30.00

25.80
25.80

25.80
25.80

25.80
25.80

25.80
25.80

Authorised
3,000,000 (Previous year 3,000,000) equity shares of INR 10 each
Issued and subscribed
2,579,665 (Previous year 2,579,665) equity shares of INR 10 each
Paid up
2,579,665 (Previous year 2,579,665) equity shares of INR 10 each

Movements in equity share capital

At the commencement of the year
Add: conversion of compulsory convertible debenture during the
year*
At the end of the year

As at 31 March 2018
Number
INR in million
2,579,665
25.80

As at 31 March 2017
Number
INR in million
1,308,499
13.08

-

-

1,271,166

12.72

2,579,665

25.80

2,579,665

25.80

* Refer Note 11(A)1, 11(A)2 and 11(A)3
Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having par value of INR 10 each.
Holder of each equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.
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Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at 31 March 2018

As at 31 March 2017
% of total
shares

Equity shares of INR10 each fully paid-up held by

Number

% of total shares

Number

Jubilant Pharma Limited, Singapore - the holding company
(including 7 shares held jointly with 7 individuals)

2,579,665

100%

2,579,665

100%

10(b) Reserves and surplus
Nature and purpose of other reserves
Capital reserve
Accumulated capital surplus not available for distribution of dividend and expected to remain invested
permanently.
Securities premium reserve
The unutilized accumulated excess of issue price over face value on issue of shares. This reserve is utilized in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.
Equity component of compound financial instruments
Equity component of compound financial instruments comprises equity portion of unsecured compulsorily
convertible debentures.
11(a) Non-current borrowings

As at
31 March 2018

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017

Long term maturity of finance lease obligations (secured)

8.87

7.96

Total non-current borrowings
Add: Current maturities of financial lease obligations (Refer note
11(e))
Total Non-current borrowings (including current maturities)

8.87

7.96

4.00

2.91

12.87

10.87
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11(b) Current borrowings

Loans repayable on demand
From banks
Secured
Unsecured
Bank overdraft (unsecured)
From others
From related party (Refer note 29)
Total current borrowings

As at
31 March 2018

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017

363.17
250.00
179.95

413.35
400.00
2.91

70.00
863.12

816.26

11(A) Nature of security of non-current borrowings and other terms of repayment
1. During the previous year, the Company issued 59,970, 8% compulsorily convertible debenture (CCD) of
face value of INR 100,000 each on 7 October 2016 and 33,337 CCD of face value of INR 100,000 each on
13 October 2016. These 8% unsecured CCD were convertible into equity share after 5 years from the date
of allotment i.e.7 October 2016 and 13 October 2016. The interest was due for payment on half yearly
basis. As per the terms, for every CCD of face value of INR 100,000 each, 7.63 equity shares of face value
of INR 10 each was to be issued at the time of conversion. Any fractional shares was to be paid in cash.
2. The 12% unsecured CCD issued in FY 2014-15 were convertible into equity shares after 7 years from the
date of allotment i.e. 2 July 2021. The interest was due for payment on quarterly basis. As per the terms, for
every CCD of face value of INR 100,000 each, 12.88 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each was
issued at the time of conversion. Any fractional shares was to be paid in cash.
3. The instruments covered in note 1 and 2 above, being in the nature of compound financial instruments
containing both equity and financial liability feature, was initially recorded separately by using method as
fully described in related accounting policy in significant accounting policy section of these financial
statements.
During the previous year, the terms of these instruments were modified whereby 12% unsecured CCD
allotted on 2 July 2014 were converted into equity shares on 2 January 2017 and 8% unsecured CCD
allotted on 7 October 2016 and 13 October 2016 respectively were converted into equity shares on 29
March 2017 respectively. Consequent to early conversion through modification of terms, the respective
financial liability on the date was extinguished and being a transaction with holding company was recorded
as an adjustment to capital reserve.
4. Finance lease obligations are secured by hypothecation of specific assets taken under such lease. The same
are repayable within five years.
11(B) Nature of security of current borrowings and other terms of repayment
1. Working capital facilities (including cash credit) sanctioned by consortium of banks and notified financial
institutions are secured by a first charge by way of hypothecation, ranking pari-passu inter-se banks, of the
entire book debts and receivables and inventories, both present and future, of the Company wherever the
same may be or be held. Other working capital loans are repayable as per terms of agreement within one
year.
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2. Short-term loans are availed in Indian rupees and in foreign currency. Indian rupee loans carry interest rate
ranging from 6.20% to 12.25% (Previous year 8.65% to 12.65%) per annum and foreign currency loans
carry interest rate of Libor plus spread ranging from Nil to Nil basis points (Previous year 200 to 350 basis
points). During the previous year Libor were reset at periodic intervals as per the terms of the loans.
3. Inventory and other financial assets with a carrying amount of INR 2,470.21 million (Previous year INR
2,660.31 million), INR 1,975.36 million (Previous year INR 2,189.76 million) respectively are provided as
security against borrowing at year end.
The composition of assets as mentioned above are defined in detail in the respective financing/ credit
arrangements.
11(c) Movement in current and non-current borrowings
INR in million
31 March 2018
827.13
46.86

Borrowings at the beginning of the year
Movement due to cash transactions per the statement of cash flows
Movement due to non-cash transactions:
- Assets taken on lease
Borrowings at the end of the year

2.00
875.99

11(d) Trade payables

Current
Trade payables
Trade payables to related parties (refer note 29)
Total trade payables

As at
31 March 2018

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017

1,484.07
241.18
1,725.25

1,502.30
356.99
1,859.29
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Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the company owes dues, which are
outstanding for more than 45 days as at the end of year. The information as required to be disclosed in
relation to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

Particulars
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end
of the year
The interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any
supplier as at the end of the year
The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 (MSMED Act), along with the amount of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the MSMED Act
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
the year
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act

As at
31 March 2018

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017

14.42

21.59

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

11(e) Other current financial liabilities

Current maturities of finance lease obligations {refer note 11(a)}
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Security deposit
Capital creditors
Employee benefits payable
Other payable to related parties (refer note 29)
Total other current financial liabilities

As at
31 March 2018
4.00
1.45
0.30
96.99
112.11
348.81
563.66

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017
2.91
48.67
0.21
174.52
121.16
232.17
579.64
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12. Other current liabilities

Advance from related party (refer note 29)
Advance from customers
Income received in advance/unearned revenue
Statutory dues payables
Total other current liabilities

As at
31 March 2018
264.98
94.09
24.61
101.46
485.14

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017
78.98
28.48
112.96
220.42

13. Provisions

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 24)
Total provisions

As at
31 March 2018
NonCurrent
current
37.06
235.09
37.06
235.09

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017
NonCurrent
current
29.45
204.93
29.45
204.93

14. Revenue from operations
INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
Sale of products (including excise duty)
- Finished goods
- Traded goods
Sale of services
Other operating revenue
Total revenue from operations

9,262.93
0.69
35.51
327.88
9,627.01

10,055.42
14.23
47.96
475.88
10,593.49

Revenue from operations for the current year is not comparable with previous year since the same is net of
Goods and Services Tax (GST) w.e.f. 1 July 2017, whereas revenue includes excise duty upto 30 June
2017.
15. Other income

Interest income
Dividend on non-trade investments
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net foreign exchange gain
Other items
Total other income

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
279.09
127.34
0.14
1.47
1.87
36.43
1.42
1.92
317.08
132.60
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16. Cost of materials consumed

Raw materials consumed
Total cost of materials consumed

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
3,669.79
3,990.53
3,669.79
3,990.53

17. Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress
INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
Opening balance
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Stock-in-trade
Total opening balance
Closing balance
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Total closing balance
Total changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-intrade and work-in-progress

1,285.23
292.74
1,577.97

840.22
254.82
3.84
1,098.88

1,079.83
382.60
1,462.43

1,285.23
292.74
1,577.97

115.54

(479.09)

18. Employee benefits expense
Particulars
Salaries, wages, bonus, gratuity and allowances
Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Staff welfare expenses
Total employee benefits expense

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
1,397.61
1,262.98
71.63
63.52
102.18
91.63
1,571.42
1,418.13

19. Finance costs
INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
Interest expense
5.49
363.75
Other borrowing costs
1.58
56.88
Exchange differences to the extent considered as an adjustment to
6.72
borrowing costs
Total finance costs
7.07
427.35

Note:
(1) Finance costs amounting to INR 58.53 million (Previous year INR 330.70 million) has been capitalized
during the year.
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20. Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4)
Total depreciation and amortisation expense

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
551.09
428.05
1,100.18
368.81
1,651.27
796.86

21. Other expenses

Power and fuel
Consumption of stores and spares and packing materials
Processing charges
Excise duty related to increase/(decrease) in inventory of finished
goods
Rental charges (refer note 31)
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion
Travel and conveyance
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery
Buildings
Others
Office expenses
Vehicle running and maintenance (refer note 31)
Printing and stationery
Telephone and communication charges
Staff recruitment and training
Donation (including corporate social responsibility expenditure)
Payments to auditors (refer note 21(a) below)
Legal and professional fees
Freight and forwarding (including ocean freight)
Directors' sitting fees
Subscription
Bank charges
Claims and other selling expenses
Commission on sales
Net foreign exchange loss
Allowance for expected loss
Loss on sale/disposal/discard of property, plant and equipments
(net)
Miscellaneous expenses
Total other expenses

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
556.72
444.52
608.48
451.90
18.06
33.14
30.26

0.39

40.03
103.47
17.80
17.93
49.96

34.77
105.20
21.30
15.49
49.31

116.88
13.96
42.02
33.73
10.67
10.17
16.29
15.31
10.58
1.31
442.80
67.55
0.62
17.22
14.31
87.75
53.79
23.48

143.52
19.46
31.36
28.32
8.61
12.25
10.90
20.68
1.36
351.39
22.94
0.81
12.62
14.82
196.05
57.66
18.30
7.74

11.73

-

9.13
2,442.01

17.45
2,132.26
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21(a): Details of payments to auditors (excluding applicable taxes and including out of pocket expenses)

Audit fee
Certification and other service fees
Total payments to auditors

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
1.20
1.20
0.11
0.16
1.31
1.36

22. Income tax expense
The major components of income tax expenses for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 are:

Profit or loss section
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge for the year
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax on profits for the year
Adjustments in respect of deferred tax of previous years
MAT Credit
MAT credit on profits for the year
Adjustment in respect of MAT credit of previous years

Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and
Loss
OCI section
Tax related to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Income tax charged to OCI

For the year
ended
31 March 2018

INR in million
For the year
ended
31 March 2017

113.83
0.82
114.65

492.16
(0.09)
492.07

94.06
(5.67)
88.39

(238.75)
(238.75)

(113.83)
(0.82)
(114.65)

(492.16)
(47.65)
(539.81)

88.39

(286.49)

(1.70)
(1.70)

(5.58)
(5.58)
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Reconciliation between average effective tax rate and applicable tax rate for 31 March 2018 and 31 March
2017:
INR in million
For the year
For the year
ended
ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
Profit before income tax
434.00
2,200.20
At India's statutory income tax rate of 34.608% (31 March 2017
150.20
761.47
34.608%)
Effect of non-deductible expenses and exempt income
115.72
(180.50)
Increment allowance for research and development and other
capital expenditure:
- on Revenue
(68.68)
(121.38)
- on Capital
(103.18)
(184.44)
Effect of prior year re-assessments
(5.67)
(561.64)
Income Tax expenses reported in the Statement of Profit
88.39
(286.49)
and Loss

23. Research and development expenditure incurred (excluding cost of acquired intangibles, finance cost,
depreciation and amortization expense) comprises as mentioned below:

Revenue expenditure

Cost of material consumed
Employee benefits expense
Utilities- power
Other expenses
Total revenue expenditure (A)

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
294.40
474.51
42.11
496.55
1,307.57

275.40
445.18
40.60
419.17
1,180.35

Out of the above total expenditure, the amount of R&D expenditure transferred to Intangibles/ Intangible assets
under development is INR 795.80 Million (Previous year INR 722.67 million). This should also be read in
conjunction with other disclosures made in the financial statements.
Capital expenditure (equipment)

Capital expenditure
Capital expenditure
Total capital expenditure (B)
Total

(A+B)

INR in million
For the year endedFor the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
74.14
128.48
74.14
128.48
1,381.71

1,308.83
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Of the above, amount of R&D expenditure incurred during the year (including R &D expenditure incurred and
carried as development expenditure) eligible for deduction under section 35(2AB) are as below:
Revenue expenditure:

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
Cost of material consumed
Employee Benefit Expense
Utilities - Power
Other Expenses
Total

294.40
432.40
42.06
145.68
914.54

275.40
406.75
40.60
106.20
828.95

Capital expenditure:

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
Equipments
Total

74.14
74.14

128.48
128.48

24. Employee benefits in respect of the Company have been calculated as under:
(A) Defined Contribution Plans
The Company has certain defined contribution plan such as employee state insurance, employee pension
scheme, wherein specified percentage is contributed to them. During the year, the Company has contributed
following amounts to:
(INR in million)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
Employer's contribution to employee’s pension scheme 1995
25.15
23.36
Employer's contribution to employee state insurance
4.03
2.42
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(B) Defined Benefit Plans
i. Gratuity
In Accordance with Ind AS 19 “Employee benefits” an actuarial valuation has been carried out in respect of
gratuity.
Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an
independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The discount rate
assumed is 7.70% p.a. (Previous year 7.50 % p.a.) which is determined by reference to market yield at the
Balance Sheet date on Government bonds. The retirement age has been considered at 58 years (Previous year
58 years) and mortality table is as per IALM (2006-08) (Previous year IALM (2006-08)).
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation is 10% p.a. for first three years and
6% p.a. thereafter (Previous year 10% p.a. for first three years and 6% p.a. thereafter), taking into account of
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment
market.
The plans assets are maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India in respect of gratuity scheme for
certain employees of the Company. The details of investments maintained by Life Insurance Corporation are
not available with the Company, hence not disclosed. The expected rate of return assumed on plan assets is
7.70% p.a. (Previous year 7.50% p.a.).
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:
(INR in million)
As at
As at
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year
146.65
115.75
Current service cost
27.16
24.13
Interest cost
11.00
9.14
Actuarial loss
5.44
15.33
Benefits paid
(15.01)
(17.70)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
175.24
146.65
Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets:
(INR in million)
As at
As at
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
175.24
146.65
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year
(27.21)
(21.61)
Net liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet
148.03
125.04
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Fair Value of Plan Assets**:

(INR in million)
As at
31 March 2017
17.22
1.36
5.74
(1.93)
(0.78)
21.61

As at
31 March 2018
Plan assets at the beginning of the year
21.61
Actual return on plan assets
1.62
Contribution by employer
5.86
Actual benefits paid
(2.45)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets
0.57
Plan assets at the end of the year
27.21
** In respect of certain employees of Nanjangud manufacturing units of the Company.
Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss under employee benefit expense:

For the year
ended
31 March 2018
27.16
9.38
36.54

(INR in million)
For the year
ended
31 March 2017
24.13
7.78
31.91

For the year
ended
31 March 2018

(INR in million)
For the year
ended
31 March 2017

Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in demographic
assumption

(0.01)

(0.07)

Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumption

(1.95)

3.58

Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from experience adjustment
Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan assets

7.40
(0.57)

11.82
0.78

Current service cost
Interest cost
Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss
Amount recognised in the other comprehensive income:

Company’s best estimate of contribution during next year is INR 42.60 million (Previous year INR 37.77
million).
As at 31 March 2018, 31 March 2017 100% of the plan assets were invested in insurer managed funds.
Sensitivity analysis
Particulars
Assumptions

31 March 2018
Discount rate

(INR in million)
31 March 2018
Future salary increase

Sensitivity level
Impact on defined benefit

0.5% increase
(5.26)

0.5% decrease
5.57

0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
5.61
(5.35)

Particulars
Assumptions
Sensitivity level
Impact on defined benefit

31 March 2017
Discount rate
0.5% increase
0.5% decrease
(4.51)
4.78

(INR in million)
31 March 2017
Future salary increase
0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
4.80
(4.57)
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The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the year and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a
change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
ii. Provident Fund:
The Company makes monthly contributions to provident fund managed by trust for qualifying employees.
Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the
benefits. As per Ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefits”, employer established provident fund trusts are treated as
defined benefit plans, since the Company is obliged to meet interest shortfall, if any, with respect to covered
employees. The total liability of INR Nil (31 March 2017: INR Nil) as worked out by the actuary has been
allocated to each entity based on the corpus value of each entity as at 31 March 2018. Accordingly, liability of
INR Nil (31 March 2017: INR Nil) has been allocated to Company and INR Nil (31 March 2017: INR Nil) has
been charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year.
Actuarial assumption made to determine interest rate guarantee on exempt provident fund liabilities are as
follows:

As at
31 March 2018
7.70%
8.55%

Discount Rate
Guaranteed rate of return

As at
31 March 2017
7.50%
8.65%

The Company has contributed INR 52.25 million to Provident Fund (Previous year: INR 46.50 million) for the
year.

(C) Other long term benefits (Compensated absences)

As at
31 March 2018
124.12

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

(INR in million)
As at
31 March 2017
109.33

25. Fair value measurements
Level of
Note hierarchy
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Loans
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Other financial assets
Total financial assets

(a)
(b)
(a)
(a)
(a)

Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities

(b)
(a)
(a)

3

3

FVPL

31 March 2018
FVOCI Amortised cost

(INR in million)
31 March 2017
FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost

-

-

1,904.46
3,290.08
67.30
3.60
95.84
5,361.28

-

-

2,225.24
3,286.33
70.47
3.60
64.71
5,650.35

-

-

875.99
1,725.25
559.66
3,160.90

-

-

827.13
1,859.30
576.73
3,263.16

Note:
(a) Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term maturities is considered as approximate to
respective carrying amount due to the short term maturities of these instruments.
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(b) Fair value of borrowings and loans is as below

Level
Loans
Borrowings

3
3

(INR in million)
Fair Value
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
3,200.05
3,074.88
875.99
827.13

There are no transfers between level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2018 and
31 March 2017.
26. Financial risk management
A. Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
Risk management framework
The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework.
The Company, through three layers of defense namely policies and procedures, review mechanism and
assurance aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations. The Audit committee of the Board with top management oversees the
formulation and implementation of the Risk management policies. The risks are identified at business unit level
and mitigation plan are identified, deliberated and reviewed at appropriate forums.
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- credit risk (see (i));
- liquidity risk (see (ii)); and
- market risk (see (iii)).

i. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers,
loans and investments. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure.
Trade receivables and other financial assets
The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for
creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The
Company’s review includes external ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency
information, industry information and business intelligence. Sale limits are established for each customer and
reviewed annually. Any sales exceeding those limits require approval from the appropriate authority as per
policy.
In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics, including
whether they are an individual or a legal entity, whether they are an institutional dealers or end-user customer,
their geographic location, industry, trade history with the Company and existence of previous financial
difficulties.
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Expected credit loss for trade receivables:
Based on internal assessment which is driven by the historical experience/ current facts available in relation to
default and delays in collection thereof, the credit risk for trade receivables is considered low. The Company
estimates its allowance for trade receivable using lifetime expected credit loss. The balance past due for more
than six month (net of expected credit loss allowance) is INR 53.77 million (Previous year INR 63.68 million)
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance of trade receivables are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Provided during the year (net of
reversal)
Less: Amount written off *
Balance at the end of the year

(INR in million)
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
5.43
4.01
4.59

1.42

(0.38)
9.64

5.43

* Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring
bankruptcy or failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company.
Expected credit loss with respect to other financial assets:
With regards to all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable, management believes
these to be high quality assets with negligible credit risk. The management believes that the parties from which
these financial assets are recoverable, have strong capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default
is negligible and accordingly no provision for excepted credit loss has been provided on these financial assets.
Break up of financial assets other than trade receivables have been disclosed on balance sheet.
ii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company’s reputation.
The Company’s treasury department is responsible for managing the short term and long term liquidity
requirements. Short term liquidity situation is reviewed daily by the treasury department. Longer term liquidity
position is reviewed on a regular basis by the Board of Directors and appropriate decisions are taken according
to the situation.
Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts
are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting
agreements.
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(INR in million)
Contractual Cash flows

31 March 2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities

Carrying
Amount
875.99
1,725.25
559.66
3,160.90

Total
875.99
1,725.25
559.66
3,160.90

Within 1 year
867.12
1,725.25
559.66
3,152.03

More than 1
year
8.87
8.87

(INR in million)
Contractual Cash flows
31 March 2017
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities

Carrying
Amount
827.13
1,859.29
576.73
3,263.15

Total
827.13
1,859.29
576.73
3,263.15

Within 1 year
819.17
1,859.29
576.73
3,255.19

More than 1
year
7.96
7.96

iii. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates that will
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return.
Currency risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which
sales, purchases and borrowings are denominated. The currencies in which the company is exposed to risk are
USD, Euro, CAD and Other.
The Company follows a natural hedge driven currency risk mitigation policy to the extent possible. Any residual
risk is evaluated and appropriate risk mitigating steps are taken, including but not limited to, entering into
forward contract and interest rate swaps.
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Exposure to currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk as reported to the management of the Company is as follows:
(INR in million)
USD
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade payables
Net statement of financial position
exposure

As at 31 March 2018
Euro
CAD

Other

USD

As at 31 March 2017
Euro
CAD

Other

1,333.18
52.39
(1,194.32)

201.62
(63.55)

41.68
(48.46)

61.92
(0.03)

1,705.13
53.10
(741.18)

180.76
(42.42)

16.44
(20.57)

41.04
(0.06)

191.25

138.07

(6.78)

61.89

1017.05

138.34

(4.13)

40.98

Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible strengthening/weakening of the USD, Euro, CAD and others against all other currencies at 31 March would have affected the measurement
of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact on forecast sales and purchases.

(INR in million)
Profit or loss (before tax)
Strengthening
Weakening
31 March 2018
USD (1% movement)
Euro (1% movement)
CAD (1% movement)
Other (1% movement)
31 March 2017
USD (1% movement)
Euro (1% movement)
CAD (1% movement)
Other (1% movement)

1.91
1.38
(0.07)
0.62

(1.91)
(1.38)
0.07
(0.62)

10.17
1.38
(0.04)
0.41

(10.17)
(1.38)
0.04
(0.41)
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Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are
borrowed at both fixed and floating interest rates. Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow
sensitivity for changes in variable interest rate. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in
INR and US dollars with a mix of fixed and floating rates of interest. The Company has exposure to interest rate
risk, arising principally on changes in base lending rate and LIBOR rates. The risk is managed by the Company
by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.
Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest‑bearing financial instruments as reported to the management
of the Company is as follows:
The following table provides a break-up of the Company’s fixed and floating rate borrowings (net of loans
given at fixed rate of interest):

Fixed rate borrowings
Floating rate borrowings
Total borrowings
Less: Fixed rate loan given to ultimate holding company
Net borrowings

INR in Million
As at
As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
82.87
10.87
793.12
816.26
875.99
827.13
3,250.00
3,250.00
(2,374.01)
(2,422.87)

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate
liabilities assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the year-end was outstanding for the whole year.
If interest rates had been 25 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Company’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2018 would decrease / increase by INR 1.98 million (Previous
year decrease / increase by INR 0.97 millions). This is mainly attributable to the Company’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable rate borrowings.
27. Segment reporting
Board of Directors of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision maker (CODM) as
defined by Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”. Operating Segments have been defined and presented based on
the regular review by the CODM to assess the performance of segment and to make decision about allocation of
resources. Accordingly, the company has determined pharmaceutical as the only reportable segment.
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Information about Geographical segments:

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
Revenue by geographical markets
India
Americas and Europe
Rest of the world
Total

Non-current assets (by geographical location of assets)*
Within India
Outside India

1,105.28
6,790.33
1,731.40
9,627.01

1,693.45
6,749.71
2,150.33
10,593.49

As at
31 March 2018

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017

16,205.63
16,205.63

15,834.46
15,834.46

*Non-current assets are excluding financial instruments and deferred tax assets.
Major customers comprising more than 10% of total revenue

Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc.
Jubilant Pharma Trading Inc.

INR in million
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
1,947.69
1,684.80
988.32
1,137.28

28. Capital management
(a) Risk management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:
 safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for its
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
 maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing
ratio:
Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances) divided by ‘Total equity’
(as shown in the Balance Sheet).
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The gearing ratios were as follows:

Net debt
Total equity
Net debt to equity ratio
29. Related Party Disclosures
i) Related parties of the Company
Ultimate Holding Company
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
Holding Company
Jubilant Pharma Limited
Fellow Subsidiaries
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC
Jubilant Biosys Limited
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc.
Jubilant Chemsys Limited
Jubilant DraxImage Inc.
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc.
Jubilant Pharma Trading Inc.
Jubilant Life Sciences (USA) Inc.
Jubilant Clinsys Inc.
Jubilant Infrastructure limited
Subsidiary
Jubilant Pharma NV
Step-down Subsidiaries
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV
PSI Supply NV
Other Entities
Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership
Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited
Vam Employees Provident Fund Trust
Jubilant Enpro Private Limited
Jubilant Bhartia Foudations
Key Management Personnel
Mr. Amit Chaurasia (Company Secretary)

As at
31 March 2018

INR in million
As at
31 March 2017

805.09
22,631.29
0.04

753.06
22,288.85
0.03
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Directors
Mr. Shyamsundar Bang (Ceased with effect from 10 October 2016)
Mr. Hari S. Bhartia (Ceased with effect from 10 October 2016)
Mr. R. Sankaraiah
Mr. Gurpartap Singh Sachdeva (Ceased with effect from 31 March 2018)
Mr. Shyam Nath Singh
Ms. Sudha Pillai

Sr.No

Particulars
Description of Transactions:
1 Sales of goods and services:
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc.
Jubilant DraxImage Inc.
Jubilant Pharma Trading Inc.
Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC
PSI Supply NV
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
2 Rental and other expenses:
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
Jubilant Enpro Private Limited
3 Purchase of goods and services:
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC
Jubilant Chemsys Limited
Jubilant Clinsys Inc.
Jubilant Biosys Limited
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV
4 Interest expense
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
Jubilant Pharma Limited
5 Interest income
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
6 Sale of Merchandise Exports from India Scheme scrip:
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited

INR in million
For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
1,947.69
988.32
315.70
2.14
3,253.85

1,684.80
1.75
1,137.28
5.39
1.42
155.19
7.69
2,993.52

56.46
5.99
62.45

55.34
2.85
58.19

79.53
15.04
19.55
1.14
0.17
115.43

65.80
42.03
28.03
0.51
0.94
5.49
142.80

4.52
4.52

743.32
743.32

276.28
276.28

126.43
126.43

147.78
147.78

291.75
291.75
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Sr.No

Particulars
Description of Transactions:
Issue of 8% Unsecured compulsorily convertible
7 debentures:
Jubilant Pharma Limited
Conversion of compulsorily convertible debentures into
8 equity share capital:
Jubilant Pharma Limited
9 Inter-corporate deposit to ultimate holding company
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
10 Inter-corporate deposit repaid by ultimate holding company
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
11 Inter-corporate deposit from ultimate holding company
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
12 Inter-corporate deposit repaid to ultimate holding company
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
13 Recovery of expenses:
Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc.
Jubilant Chemsys Limited
Jubilant DraxImage Inc.
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc.
Jubilant Pharma Limited
Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited
14 Purchase of property plant and equipment:
Jubilant Infrastructure Limited
15 Sale of property plant and equipment:
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc.

INR in million
For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017

-

9,330.70
9,330.70

-

13,671.70
13,671.70

55.00
55.00

3,250.00
3,250.00

55.00
55.00

-

1,830.50
1,830.50

-

1,760.50
1,760.50

-

12.03
25.17
5.16
8.14
16.04
6.47
1.13
1.87
4.56
80.57

19.30
33.86
4.36
17.37
13.69
9.92
1.72
3.81
104.03

-

0.02
0.02

-

13.11
13.11
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Sr.No

Particulars
Description of Transactions:
16 Reimbursement of expenses:
Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc.
Jubilant DraxImage Inc.
Jubilant Chemsys Limited
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV
PSI Supply NV
Jubilant Pharma Limited
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc.
17 Donations:
Jubilant Bhartia Foudations
18 Remuneration and Related Expenses:
Mr. Amit Chaurasia
19 Sitting fees:
Mr. Shyam Nath Singh
Ms. Sudha Pillai
20 Company's Contribution to PF Trust :
Vam Employee Provident Fund Trust

Sr.No

Particulars
1 Amount Outstandings:
Trade payables:
Jubilant Clinsys Inc.
Jubilant DraxImage Inc.
Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc.
Jubilant Biosys Limited
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV
PSI Supply NV

INR in million
For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
40.86
0.18
111.13
1.17
0.48
172.79
47.76
62.67
182.00
619.04

4.65
212.80
0.43
0.41
204.63
31.59
0.14
121.17
575.82

10.48
10.48

-

3.20
3.20

2.97
2.97

0.22
0.41
0.63

0.44
0.38
0.82

52.25
52.25

46.50
46.50

INR in million
As at
31 March 2018
31 March 2017

19.55
0.67
46.59
35.19
23.53
51.98
1.75
42.97
18.95
241.18

3.36
17.41
19.90
23.39
243.00
0.70
32.98
16.25
356.99
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INR in million
Sr.No

Particulars
2 Other payables:
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc.
Jubilant Pharma Trading Inc.
Jubilant Life Sciences (USA) Inc.
3 Advance from customers
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc.
4 Employee benefits payable
Vam Employees Provident Fund Trust
5 Interest payable:
Jubilant Pharma Limited
6 Interest receivable:
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
7 Receivable against inter corporate deposit
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
8 Payable against inter corporate deposit
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
9 Trade receivables:
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc.
Jubilant DraxImage Inc.
Jubilant HollisterStier General Partnership
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
Jubilant Pharma Trading Inc.
Jubilant Life Sciences (USA) Inc.
Jubilant Pharmaceuticals NV
PSI Supply NV
Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited
10 Other receivables:
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc.
Jubilant Chemsys Limited
Jubilant DraxImage Inc.
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc.
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited
Jubilant Enpro Private Limited

As at
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
242.11
36.49
70.21
348.81

162.30
69.87
232.17

264.98
264.98

-

12.72
12.72

11.23
11.23

-

48.67
48.67

21.12
21.12

21.12
21.12

3,250.00
3,250.00

3,250.00
3,250.00

70.00
70.00

-

26.19
163.00
20.60
203.62
1.05
414.46

159.78
1.70
5.25
1.36
3.46
124.19
50.39
17.67
127.15
1.89
492.84

3.64
1.32
4.52
42.72
2.27
18.45
0.31
73.23

15.97
3.11
17.32
6.10
0.31
42.81
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30. Contingent liabilities to the extent not provided for:
Claims against Company, disputed by the Company, not acknowledged as debt:

Service Tax
Central Excise
Customs
Others

As at 31 March
2018
317.55
18.50
0.08
0.20

(INR in million)
As at 31 March
2017
22.85
4.65
0.08
25.08

Including claims in respect of business acquired from Jubilant Life Sciences Limited, though the litigations
may be continuing in the name of Jubilant Life Sciences Limited, however any liability arising in future
relating to these disputes will be borne by the Company.
Additionally, the Company is involved in other disputes, lawsuits, claims, governmental and/ or regulatory
inspections, inquiries, investigations and proceedings, including commercial matters that arise from time to
time in the ordinary course of business.
The Company believes that none of these matters, either individually or in aggregate, are expected to have any
material adverse effect on its financial statements.
31. Commitments as at year end
a) Capital Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) is INR 567.67
million (Previous year: INR 350.98 million).
b) Leases:
i)

The Company’s significant operating lease arrangements are in respect of premises (offices, godowns
etc.). These leasing arrangements, which are cancellable, range between 11 months and 3 years generally
and are usually renewable by mutual agreeable terms. The aggregate lease rentals payable are charged as
expenses. Rental expense recognised under such leases are INR 40.03 million (Previous year INR 34.77
million).

ii)

The Company has operating lease arrangements in respect of vehicles which are cancellable, range
between 2 years and 5 years. The aggregate lease rentals payable are charged as expenses. Rental
expenses recognized under such leases amounting to INR 3.01 million (31 March 2017: INR 3.37
million) has been included under vehicle running and maintenance expense in note 21.
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iii) Assets acquired under finance lease:
The Company has taken vehicles under finance lease. Future minimum lease payments and their present
values under finance leases are as follows:
(INR in million)
Present value of
Minimum lease
minimum lease
Future interest
Particulars
payments
payments
As at
As at
As at
As at
As at
As at
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
Not later than one
5.66
4.19
4.00
2.91
1.66
1.28
year
Later than one year
but not later than five
10.66
9.67
8.87
7.96
1.79
1.71
years
Later than five years
There is no element of contingent rent or sub lease payments. The Company has option to purchase the
assets at the end of the lease term. There are no restrictions imposed by these lease arrangements regarding
dividend, additional debt and further leasing.
c) Other Commitments:
Export obligation undertaken by the Company under EPCG scheme to be completed over a period of six
years on account of import of Capital Goods at concessional import duty and remaining outstanding is INR
127.31 million (Previous year INR 118.11 million). Similarly, export obligation under Advance License
Scheme/DFIA scheme on duty free import of specific raw materials, remaining outstanding is INR 189.29
million (Previous year INR 1,154.96 million).

32. Disclosure pursuant to section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of unsecured loans to ultimate
holding companies [Refer note 29]:

INR in million
31 March 31 March
Purpose of term loan
2018
2017
Outstanding as at the beginning of the year
Given during the year
Repaid during the year
Outstanding as at the end of the year

General business
purpose and interest rate
between 7.00% to 8.50%
p.a.

3,250.00

-

55.00

3,250.00

55.00

-

3,250.00

3,250.00

Jubilant Generics Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

33. On cash transaction on specified notes
During the previous year, the company had Specified Bank Notes (SBNs) or other denomination notes as
defined in the MCA notification, G.S.R. 308(E), dated 31 March 2017. The details of SBNs held and
transacted during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, the denomination-wise SBNs and
other notes as per the notification are as follows

(INR in million)
Specified Bank
Notes

Other
denomination
Notes

Total

0.22
(0.22)
-

0.60
2.56
(2.48)
0.68

0.82
2.56
(2.48)
(0.22)
0.68

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016
(+) Permitted receipts
(-) Permitted payments
(-) Amount deposited in Banks
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016

For the purpose of this clause, the term “Specified Bank Notes” shall have the same meaning provided in the
notification of the Government of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number
S.O. 3407, dated 8 November 2016. The specified bank notes are no longer in existence. Hence, the Company
has not provided the corresponding disclosures for the current year as prescribed in Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013.
34. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expense

Particulars
Prescribed CSR expenditure as per Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013
Details of CSR spent during the financial year
a) Construction / acquisition of any asset
b) On purposes other than (a) above (1)

31 March 2018

(INR in million)
31 March 2017

10.48

-

10.48

-

(1) Included in Donation – Refer note 21
35. Employee Stock Option Scheme
Jubilant Life Sciences Limited (JLSL), the ultimate holding company, is entitled to grant stock options to the
employees of its subsidiaries under the following stock option plans:



Jubilant Employees Stock Option Plan, 2005 (“Plan 2005”)
JLL Employees Stock Option Plan, 2011 (“Plan 2011”)

The terms and conditions and other required disclosures of the above mentioned stock options plans is set out
below:
Under Plan 2005, as amended, and under Plan 2011, options are to be granted at market price. As per the SEBI
Guidelines applicable to JLSL the market price is taken as the closing price on the day preceding the date of
grant of options, on the stock exchange where the trading volume is the highest. Under Plan 2005, each option,
upon vesting, shall entitle the holder to acquire five equity shares of INR 1 each. Options granted up to 28
August 2009 will vest entirely within two years from the grant date, with certain lock-in provisions. Options
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granted after 28 August 2009 will vest gradually over a period of 5 years from the grant date, without any lockin provisions.
Under Plan 2011, each option, upon vesting, shall entitle the holder to acquire one equity share of INR 1 each.
Options granted will vest gradually over a period of 3 years from the grant date. Vesting of Options is a function
of achievement of performance criteria or any other criteria, as specified and communicated in the grant letter.
Summary of vesting and lock-in provisions are given below:
Plan 2005
Vesting schedule (With lock in)
Vesting schedule (Without lock in)
Applicable for grants made up to 28
Applicable for grants made after
August 2009
28 August 2009
% of
options
Vesting Date
scheduled
to vest

Lock-in
period

% of
options
Vesting date
scheduled
to vest

Plan 2011
Vesting schedule

% of
Lockoptions
in
Vesting date
scheduled
period
to vest

Lock-in
period

10

1 year from grant
date

Nil

10

1 year from
grant date

Nil

20

1 year from grant
date

Nil

15

2 years from
grant date

Nil

15

2 years from
grant date

Nil

30

2 years from
grant date

Nil

20

2 years from
grant date

1 year from
vesting date

20

3 years from
grant date

Nil

50

3 years from
grant date

Nil

25

2 years from
grant date

2 years from
vesting date

25

4 years from
grant date

Nil

30

2 years from
grant date

3 years from
vesting date

30

5 years from
grant date

Nil

The movement of the stock options issued to the employees of the Company under both the plans during the
year is set out below:
Under Plan 2005
For the year ended
31 March 2018
Number of
options
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Exercised during the year
Forfeited/lapsed during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year
Exercisable at the end of the year

100
100
-

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Weighted
average exercise
price (INR)
314.35
314.35
-

The Board has decided that no further grants will be made under Plan 2005.

Number of
options
3,100
(2,200)
(800)
100
100

Weighted
average exercise
price (INR)
244.76
250.02
221.60
314.35
314.35
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Under Plan 2011
For the year ended
31 March 2018
Weighted
Number of
average exercise
options
price (INR)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Transfer of employee from JLSL
Exercised during the year
Forfeited/lapsed during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year
Exercisable at the end of the year

17,600
(3,068)
(7,166)
7,366
7,366

For the year ended
31 March 2017
Weighted
Number of
average exercise
options
price (INR)

215.14
220.90
214.03
213.83
213.83

56,620
(37,680)
(1,340)
17,600
17,600

216.05
216.30
220.90
215.14
215.14

The weighted average share price for share options exercised during the year was INR 804.21 (31 March 2017:
INR 569.05).
Fair value of option granted
The weighted average fair value of options granted as at 31 March 2018 for Plan 2005 and Plan 2011 were INR
94.18 and INR 84.90 respectively. The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton
model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and
expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for
the term of the option. The following tables list the inputs to models used for fair valuation of two plans:
Particulars
Expected volatility
Risk free interest rate
Exercise price (INR)
Expected dividend yield
Life of options (years)

Plan 2005
29.73% - 41.76%
7.52% - 9.44%
198.55 - 359.25
0.51% - 0.90%
4.25

Plan 2011
38.36% - 45.95%
7.74% - 8.81%
170.20 - 220.90
0.63% - 1.10%
3.65

Expected volatility has been based on an evaluation of the historical volatility of the share price, particularly
over the historical period commensurate with the expected term. The expected term of the instruments has been
based on historical experience and general option holder behaviour.
Expense arising from share-based payment transaction
The expenses arising from share-based payment transaction recognised in Statement of profit and loss as part of
employee benefit expense for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 were INR Nil and INR Nil
respectively.
36. Government grant recoverable INR 121.46 million (Previous year INR 149.72 million) and Government grant
recognized INR 257.44 million (Previous year INR 352.92 million) in Statement of Profit and Loss.
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37. Earnings per share
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
INR in million
345.61
2,486.69
Nos
2,579,665
1,450,685

Profit for basic earnings per share of INR 10 each
No. of shares for basic earnings per share
Profit for basic earnings per share of INR 10 each
Add: Interest on compound financial instrument charged to the
Statement of Profit and loss
Adjustable net profit after tax for diluted earning per share
No. of shares for basic earnings per share
Add: Potential dilutive effect of compound financial instrument
No. of shares for diluted earnings per share
Earnings per share (face value of INR 10 each)
Basic
Diluted

INR in million

345.61

2,486.69

INR in million

-

332.61

345.61

2,819.30

Nos
Nos
Nos

2,579,665
2,579,665

1,450,685
758,046
2,208,731

INR
INR

133.98
133.98

1,714.15
1,276.44

INR in million

38. The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as
required by the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Since the law
requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in
the process of updating the documentation for the specified domestic transactions entered into with the
specified persons and the international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the
financial year and expects such records to be in existence before the due date of filing of income tax return.
The management is of the opinion that its specified domestic transactions and international transactions are at
arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly
on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.
39. The previous year figures have been reclassified to conform to current year classification.
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